
From: Mike Christian
To: James Thum
Subject: North Harmon spacing application
Date: Wednesday, May 08, 2024 09:54:39 AM
Attachments: 20230506.North Harmon Payette County mailing receipt.pdf

20240506.North Harmon mailing receipts.pdf
20240506.North Harmon Spacing Application and Notice complete.pdf
Adjacent Owners Sheet.xlsx
20240501.North Harmon uncommitted owners with addresses.docx

CAUTION: This email originated outside the State of Idaho network. Verify links and attachments
BEFORE you click or open, even if you recognize and/or trust the sender. Contact your agency
service desk with any concerns.

James, attached are copies of the certified mailing receipts for uncommitted owners in
the unit and uncommitted adjacent owners, and mailing addresses for both.   

I'll have to get mailing addresses for committed owners in the unit from Snake River,
since 47-328(3) did not require notice or mailing to them (as they have leased to the
operator and contractually authorized it to pursue a spacing unit including their
property. 

I've also attached a copy of the entire application packet that was mailed, including the
notice of hearing and response deadline required by 47-328(3).   It includes the
corrected plat map, Dave Smith's properly formatted declaration, and the updated
exhibits to his declaration.

Thanks,
Mike 

Michael Christian
Of Counsel
HARDEE, PIÑOL & KRACKE, PLLC
1487 S. David Lane
Boise, ID  83705
(208) 433-3913
mike@hpk.law

 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mail is intended only for the personal and confidential use of the individual(s) named as recipients and is
covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 2510-2521.  It may contain information that is privileged, confidential
and/or protected from disclosure under applicable law including, but not limited to, the attorney client privilege and/or work product
doctrine.  If you are not the intended recipient of this transmission, please notify the sender immediately by telephone.  Do not deliver,
distribute or copy this transmission, disclose its contents or take any action in reliance on the information it contains.
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Fern Marie Robinette 
1255 Allen Ave, Apt. 104 
Fruitland, ID 83619 
 
 
Robert and Sue Hewett 
1400 N. 8 Avenue 
Payette, ID 83661 
 
 
City of Fruitland 
P.O. Box 324 
Fruitland, ID 83619 
 
 
Idaho Northern and Pacific Railroad 
1400 Douglas ST Stop 1640 
Omaha, NE 68179 
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Owner Address

City Of Fruitland
Already to be noticed 

as uncommitted 
owner in unit area

James E Way
9000 Washoe Rd, 

Payette

Nelson Metal Tech
8952 Washoe Rd,

Payette

Rickey G Griffin
1247 Nw 8 Ave, 

Payette

Timothy E Lefebvre
8700 Shannon Rd, 

Payette

Robert Harris
8660 Shannon Rd,

Payette

Idaho Northern & 
Pacific Railroad

Already to be noticed 
as uncommitted 

owner in unit area

Karen Le Oltman 8970 Hurd Ln, Payette
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BEFORE THE IDAHO DEPARTMENT OF LANDS 
  
 
In the Matter of Application of Snake River Oil 
and Gas, LLC, for Order Establishing a 
Spacing Unit Consisting of the NE ¼ of Section 
9 and the NW ¼ of Section 10, Township 8 
North, Range 5 West, Boise Meridian, Payette 
County, Idaho 
 
SNAKE RIVER OIL AND GAS, LLC, 
Applicant. 
  
  

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

 
Docket No. CC-2024-OGR-01-001 
 

 

NOTICE 

To all uncommitted mineral interest owners in the NE ¼ of Section 9 and the NW ¼ of Section 
10, Township 8 North, Range 5 West, Boise Meridian, Payette County, Idaho: 

On April, pursuant to Idaho Code § 47-317 and § 47-328 Snake River Oil and Gas, LLC filed an 
application with the Idaho Department of Lands for an order establishing a spacing unit described 
as NE ¼ of Section 9 and the NW ¼ of Section 10, Township 8 North, Range 5 West, Boise 
Meridian, Payette County, Idaho. A copy of the application will be available from the Idaho 
Department of Lands, 300 N. 6th St., Suite 103, Boise, ID  83702, (208) 334-0200, or at the 
Department’s website at https://ogcc.idaho.gov/administrative-hearings. All uncommitted interest 
owners in the proposed spacing unit will have an opportunity to respond to the application. Any 
such response should be addressed to the Department of Lands, 300 N. 6th Street, Suite 103; PO 
Box 83720, Boise, ID 83720-0050, or submitted via email as allowed by the Department.  
Responses must be filed with the Department no later than fourteen (14) days before the hearing 
on the application. Unless rescheduled to a later date by the Department, the hearing on the 
application will be held according to the Department’s regular hearing schedule on June 13, 2024.  
Notice of the hearing date will be available on the Department’s website as listed above and at the 
address and phone number listed above.  
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 L A W  O F F I C E S   

D A N I E L  R .  H A R D E E  

G R E G  K .  H A R D E E  

R I C H  M .  P i Ñ O L  

D A V I D  R .  K R A C K E  

J O E  M .  H A R R I N G T O N  

J A K E  H A R D E E  

 

O f  C o u n s e l :  

B O  D A V I E S  

M I C H A E L  C H R I S T I A N  

HARDEE, PIÑOL & KRACKE PLLC  

1487 S.  Dav id  Lane  
Boise,  Idaho  83705  

T E L E P H O N E  

( 2 0 8 )  4 3 3 - 3 9 1 3  

T E L E F A X  

( 2 0 8 )  3 4 2 - 2 1 7 0  

 

 
  

 

April 29, 2024 

 

James Thum 

Program Manager, Oil and Gas 

Idaho Department of Lands 

300 N. 6th St, Suite 103 

Boise, Idaho 83702 

Email: jthum@idl.idaho.gov 

 

Re:  Docket No. CC-2024-OGR-01-001; Application for order to establish spacing unit 

consisting of the NE ¼ of Section 9 and the NW ¼ of Section 10, Township 8 North, 

Range 5 West, Payette County, Idaho 

Dear James: 

Pursuant to Idaho Code §47-317 and §47-328, Applicant Snake River Oil and Gas, LLC 

(“Applicant”) submits1 this application for an order establishing a gas spacing unit consisting of 

the NE ¼ of Section 9 and the NW ¼ of Section 10, both in Township 8 North, Range 5 West, 

Payette County, Idaho.  This application is based on the following:   

1. Idaho Code §47-317(1): To prevent or assist in preventing the waste of oil and gas, 

to avoid drilling unnecessary wells or to protect correlative rights, the department may, on its own 

motion or on the application of an interested person, and after notice and opportunity for hearing, 

issue an order establishing spacing units on a statewide basis, or for defined areas within the state, 

or for oil and gas wells drilled to varying depths. 

Applicant proposes a spacing unit consisting of the defined area of NE ¼ of Section 9 and 

the NW ¼ of Section 10, both in Township 8 North, Range 5 West, as illustrated on the plat map 

attached hereto as Exhibit A.  Committed tracts are highlighted in yellow, and uncommitted tracts 

are shown in white.  The uncommitted mineral owners in the proposed unit area are set forth in the 

exhibit attached hereto as Exhibit B.  The uncommitted tracts shown on Exhibit A are indexed to 

 
1 I am submitting this application to you as the Department’s Program Manager for Oil & Gas, as the 

position of Administrator for Minerals, Navigable Waters, and Oil & Gas is currently vacant. 

Filed with OAH 05/08/2024 - Page 7 of 23

mailto:jthum@idl.idaho.gov


April 29, 2024 

Page 2 

 

the numbered list of tract owners on Exhibit B.  Tracts numbered 3, 4, 5 and 8 shown on Exhibit 

A are uncommitted. 

  As set forth in the Declaration of Richard Brown attached hereto as Exhibit C, Applicant 

is an “interested person” for purposes of Idaho Code § 47-317(1) by virtue of currently holding 

approximately 83.6875% of the net mineral acres in proposed spacing unit area by lease.   

Applicant is an “owner” as defined by Idaho Code § 47-310(27) as to each tract leased by it in the 

proposed spacing unit area, as by virtue of each lease Applicant is “the person who has the right to 

drill into and produce from a pool and to appropriate the oil and gas that he produces therefrom, 

either for himself or for himself and others.” 

As set forth in the Declaration of David Smith attached hereto as Exhibit D and discussed 

below, Applicant submits that the proposed spacing unit configuration will prevent waste, avoid 

the drilling of unnecessary wells and protect correlative rights. 

2. Idaho Code § 47-317(2):  An order establishing spacing units shall specify the 

location, size, and shape of the unit, which, in the opinion of the department, shall result in the 

efficient and economical development of the pool as a whole. These units established by the 

department shall be geographic. The geographic boundary of the unit shall be described in 

accordance with the public land survey system. The department shall issue an order establishing a 

spacing unit or units to determine the area that can be efficiently and economically drained by one 

(1) well for the orderly development of the pool. 

As set forth in Exhibit D, Applicant submits that the proposed spacing unit will result in 

the efficient and economical development of the pool as a whole.  The proposed spacing unit is 

geographic and described in accordance with the public land survey system, and within that 

requirement describes the area that can be efficiently and economically drained by one well for the 

orderly development of the pool.   

A standard spacing unit consisting of either all of Section 9 or all of Section 10 would not 

accomplish the orderly development of the pool or describe the area that can be economically or 

efficiently drained by one well, as large areas of either unit would be outside the drainage area of 

an anticipated well targeting Sands A and B.  Compensation to owners of those areas would injure 

the correlative rights of owners of the minerals within the drainage area of the well.  “Correlative 

rights” are defined in the Act to mean “the opportunity of each owner in a pool to produce his just 

and equitable share of oil and gas in a pool without waste.”  Idaho Code § 47-310(8).  Additionally, 

development according to standard spacing would result in inefficient drainage, could diminish 

the quantity of hydrocarbons ultimately produced from Sands A and B, and require unnecessary 

additional wells, causing waste.  Idaho Code § 47-310(36)(a).   

The proposed unit area is described by geographic subdivision as required by Idaho Code 

§ 47-317(2).  The proposed unit area is not required to exactly describe the outlines of the sand to 

be tested and produced. Courts in other states have erred on the side of the inclusion of questionable 
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acreage when confronted with claims of barren acreage within a spacing unit. See Amoco 

Production Co. v. Ware, 602 S.W.2d 620 (Ark. 1981).  

3. Idaho Code § 47-328(3)(b):  For applications involving an order regarding 

establishment or amendment of a spacing unit, . . . the applicant shall send a copy of the application 

and supporting documents to all known and located uncommitted mineral interest owners, all 

working interest owners within the proposed spacing unit, and the respective city or county where 

the proposed unit is located. The mailing shall be sent by certified mail within seven (7) days of 

filing the application and include notice of the hearing date on which the administrator will 

consider the application. For any uncommitted owners and working interest owners who cannot 

be located, an applicant shall publish notice of any application for an order, notice of hearing and 

response deadline once in a newspaper of general circulation in the county in which the affected 

property is located and request the department publish notice on its website within seven (7) days 

of filing of the application. 

Within seven days of the filing of this Application, Applicant will mail a copy of this 

application and its supporting exhibits, along with a notice of the hearing date on which the 

Administrator will hear the application according to the Department’s regular hearing schedule, to 

all uncommitted mineral interest owners in the proposed spacing unit area, as listed on Exhibit B, 

as well as to all uncommitted mineral interest owners in properties contiguous with the proposed 

spacing unit area.2  Applicant will separately file copies of mailing receipts with the Department 

following the mailing. 

There are no unknown or unlocatable mineral interest owners in the proposed unit area, or 

as to the tracts immediately adjacent to the proposed unit area. 

Applicant requests that this application be heard at the next regularly scheduled 

administrative hearing date listed on the Department’s website, June 13, 2024. 

Very truly yours, 

     HARDEE, PINOL & KRACKE, PLLC 

      
     __________________________________________  

  Michael Christian 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2 § 328(3)(b) does not require notice to mineral owners outside the proposed unit area, but in an exercise of 

caution Applicant is noticing those uncommitted owners of tracts contiguous to the proposed unit area not 

already receiving notice by virtue of owning property inside the proposed unit area.   
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Attachments:   Exhibit A (plat map) 

Exhibit B (list of mineral owners) 

Exhibit C (Declaration of Richard Brown) 

Exhibit D (Declaration of David Smith) 

cc:  Snake River Oil and Gas, LLC 
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Exhibit A
The Northeast Quarter of Section 9 and The Northwest Quarter of Section 

10 Township 8 North, Range 5 West. 
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EXHIBIT B

Open Net Acres
52.2

Map # Tract Parcel Mineral Owner / Lessor Current Lessee Gross Acres Interest Net Acres

#1 08N05W-9&10-001

0316000100C; 
03160008000A; 
03160011000A; 
03780009000A; 
03780009000B

Fallon Enterprises
Larry James 235.37 1 235.37

#2 08N05W-9&10-002 37800160000 Garman & Sons, Inc. 4.1 1 4.1

#3 08N05W-9&10-003 03780017000A Fern Marie Robinette 20 1 20

#4 08N05W-9&10-004 03780019000A Robert and Sue Hewett 1.8 1 1.8

#5 08N05W-9&10-005

F316000700A; 
F00000109997; 
F3780020000A City of Fruitland 25.4 1 25.4

#6 08N05W-10-006 Payette River 17.88 1 17.88

#7 08N05W-9&10-007 Highway 95 7.2 1 7.2

#6 08N05W-9&10-008 Payette River 3.25 1 3.25

#8 08N05W-9&10-009 Idaho Northern &  Pacific Railroad 5 1 5

Total
Net Acres

3.25

Total 
Open Acres

0

Total Leased
Acres
3.25

Total Leased %
100

Total
Net Acres

5

Total 
Open Acres

5

Total Leased
Acres

0
Total Leased %

0

Total
Net Acres

20

Total 
Open Acres

20

Total Leased
Acres

0

Total
Net Acres

25.4

Total
Net Acres

1.8

Gross Acres Leased Net Acres

Total
Net Acres

4.1

Total 
Open Acres

0

Total Leased
Acres

4.1

Total 
Net Acres

235.37

Total
Open Acres

0
Total Leased Acres

235.37

320 267.8 0.836875

Total Leased %
100

Total Leased %
100

Total
Net Acres

7.2

Total 
Open Acres

0

Total Leased
Acres

7.2
Total Leased %

100

Leased %

Total
Net Acres

22.8

Total 
Open Acres

0

Total Leased
Acres
22.8

Total Leased %
100

Total Leased %
0

Total 
Open Acres

25.4

Total Leased
Acres

0
Total Leased %

0

Total 
Open Acres

1.8

Total Leased
Acres

0

Total Leased %
0
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Exhibit D
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NORTH SOUTH
PROPOSED
NEW UNIT WELL

FALLON #1-10
Existing Well

North-South 3-D Seismic Line Showing:
1. (Right) Known Sand B Gas Pool – South Unit, Fallon #1-10
2. (Left) Presumed Sand B Gas Pool in Proposed New Unit
3. Proposed New Unit Boundaries (Maroon Dashed Lines)
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PROPOSED NEW UNIT WELL:
ESTIMATED TOPS INDICATED
Estimated Gas/Water Contact
1.186 Msc = -1294’ Subsea

EXISTING FALLON # 1-10 WELL:
KNOWN TOPS INDICATED
KNOWN Gas/Water Contact
1.209 Msc = -1388’ Subsea

Exhibit A
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3 3
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NORTH SOUTH
FALLON #1-10
Existing Well

PROPOSED
NEW UNIT WELL

North-South 3-D Seismic Line (Enlarged & Interpreted) Showing:
1. (Right) Known Sand B Gas Pool – South Unit, Fallon #1-10
2. (Left) Presumed Sand B Gas Pool – Proposed New Unit
3. Fallon #1-10 Log Curves Displayed: Gamma Ray (Gold) & Induction (Red)

1
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Y
PROPOSED
NEW UNIT WELL:
Estimated Gas/Water Contact
1.186 Msc = -1294’ Subsea

EXISTING FALLON # 1-10 WELL:
KNOWN Gas/Water Contact
1.209 Msc = -1388’ Subsea

Exhibit B
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Amplitude Map Showing Strength of Reflection from Base of:
1. Known Sand B Gas Pool – South Unit, Fallon #1-10
2. Presumed Sand B Gas Pool – Proposed New Unit
3. Location of 3-D Seismic Lines in 2 Previous & Following Slides (Red)

NORTH

SOUTH

Exhibit C

1

2

3

3

Proposed New Unit Boundary

Sand B Termination
(Black Dash)

Existing Fallon 1-10 Unit Boundary
(Blue Dash)

Presumed Sand B Gas Pool
(Orange Dash)

Known Sand B Gas Pool
(Orange Dash)

Amplitude Strength

“Strong”

“Weak”
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Exhibit D

West Northwest-East Southeast (WNW-ESE) 3-D Seismic Line Showing:
1. Presumed Sand A & B Gas Pools – Proposed New Unit
2. Proposed New Unit Boundaries Displayed on the Seismic Line (Maroon Dash)

PROPOSED
NEW UNIT WELL
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